CAZADERO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
PO BOX 508
CAZADERO CA 95421-0508

Board Meeting Agenda
March 8, 2023 ~ 6:30PM
Location ~ Fire Station #1
5980 Cazadero Hwy, Cazadero, CA 95421

The Board meeting agenda and all supporting documents are available for public review on the
website at www.cazadero-csd.org and upon prior appointment at 5980 Cazadero Hwy, Cazadero
CA, 72 hours in advance of a scheduled board meeting. Materials related to an item on this
Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, and not otherwise exempt
from disclosure, will be made available for public inspection at the District Office upon prior
appointment at 5980 Cazadero Hwy, Cazadero and on the website at www.cazadero-csd.org.
Copies of supplemental materials distributed at the Board meeting will be available for public
inspection at the meeting location.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special assistance to
participate in this meeting should contact District Administrative Assistant Sherry Kulczewski at
(707) 591-1015. Notification 48-hours before the meeting will enable the District to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL
President P. Barry
Director M. Berry Director H. Canelis Director D. DeBeaune Director S. Griswold

OPEN TIME FOR PUBLIC EXPRESSION

This is an opportunity for any member of the public to briefly address the District Board on any
matter that does not appear on this agenda and is restricted to matters within the Board’s
jurisdiction. Items that appear to warrant a more-lengthy presentation or Board consideration
may be placed on the agenda for discussion at a future meeting. Please limit comments to three
hundred (300) words.

AGENDA ADJUSTMENTS
An opportunity for the Board President to approve adjustments to the current agenda.

DIRECTOR REPORTS »
An opportunity for Directors to report on their individual activities related to District Business.

Page 1 of 43



STAFF REPORTS

1. Administrative Assistant

2. Fire Department and Firefighters Association Report
a. Operations
b. Administration
¢. Training
d. Special Projects

3. Park & Rec Maintenance

4. Facilities

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
These items can be acted on in one consolidated motion or may be removed from the Consent
Calendar and separately considered at the request of any Director

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes — February 14, 2023

ACTION ITEMS

1. Resolution 22/23-15 Setting a Location, a Day and a Time for Regular Monthly
Meetings — Discussion/Action —

2. Resolution 22/23-16 Authorizing Participation In and Approving the Amended and
Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the Fire Risk Management Services
Joint Powers Authority — Discussion/Action —

3. Replace Leaking Firehouse Stove — Discussion/Action — Update on new stove

4. Fiber Optic Grant and Emergency Communications — Discussion/Action — Update on
implementation of Emergency Radio Communications in Cazadero.

5. Playground Equipment — Discussion/Action —

6. Alcohol sales and/or consumption at fire department events held on CCSD property or
held off-site — Discussion/Action —

7. Alcohol sales and/or consumption on CCSD property at events hosted by third parties
— Discussion/Action —

8. Use of firehall (including tables, chairs, fencing) by third parties — Discussion/Action —

DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Update on Grants — Discussion —
2. Vegetation Management — Discussion —

COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Park Ad Hoc 2020

FINANCIAL REPORTS
1. Email from Chris Ryan of Streamline, re: Subscription will increase July 2023

COMMUNICATIONS

ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 43



STAFF REPORTS



Fire Department

Operations:

¢ Chief Krausmann reports that the new UTV will be picked up on March 3, 2023.
*  Chief Krausmann reports that 5290 is still at Burton Fire for water tank repair.

February 2023 Calls

Nature of Call ; Number of Calls
Medical Aid 2
Hazardous Condition
Fire Investigation
Gas In a Structure
Fire Alarm Residential

ok | | (09 | Y

Administration

®  Chief Krausmann reports that the funding for the UTV has been approved in the amount of $31,273.00.
Training

e March 16, Fit Testing (SCBA).
e March 30, MCI Review.

Firefighters Association

e March 2, Meeting/Maintenance

Page 4 of 43



Facilities

This month | mopped the floors several times a week. | cleaned the tables, counters, refrigerator, and
microwave. Swept the firetruck room and swept and mopped the two offices. Cleaned the bathrooms
including the toilets and sinks. Several times a week | replaced the toilet paper and paper towels. | took
laundry home (mopheads and rags) to wash and dry. | ordered a case of sponges and glass cleaner. |
also arranged the pots and pans in a more orderly way. | also washed the windows in the front and used
the leaf blower in the front of the fire hall and the back. |also neatened up the lower cupboards where
paper towels, napkins, etc. are stored.

Total hours 18.

Nancy Caplan

Page 5 of 43



CONSENT ITEMS



Cazadero Community Services District
Meeting Minutes — February 14, 2023

The Cazadero Community Services District meeting was conducted pursuant to the
provisions of the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 which suspends certain
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act due to the COVID-19 virus. CSD Board
Members and staff participated in the meeting by zoom teleconference. Members
of the public were provided a zoom and telephone call-in number to view or listen
to the meeting and the opportunity to provide public comment verbally or in
written format.

1.

Call to Order and Roli Call

The regular meeting of the Cazadero CSD Board was called to order at 6:30 PM on February 14,
2023. Director P. Barry led the Pledge of Allegiance. The following Directors were present: P.
Barry, M. Berry, H. Canelis, D. DeBeaune, and S. Griswold. Chief Krausmann, AA Kulczewski,
and several members of the public were also present.

Public Comment

None.
Agenda Adjustments

Action Item 5 — Alcohol Sales and/or consumption at fire department events held on CCSD
property or held off-site, Action Item 6 — alcohol sales and/or consumption on CCSD property at
events hosted by third parties, Action Item 7 — Use of firehall (including tables, chairs, fencing) by
third parties were moved to before Director Reports. Action Item 4 — Playground Equipment was
moved to right after Action Item 7.

Director Reports

Director P. Barry reported the CCSD website has a button for Firefighter Association , if Chief
Krausmann has anything to put on website he can post it; he is working on an electronic payment
button on the website for donations.

Staff Reports
Facilities staff report was read by AA Kulczewski.

Chief Krausmann reported potential cost of repair of 5290 (to get access to tank and to put
everything back — tank itself is under warranty) will be $6,200.00; 5282 and 5291 will have annual
pump tests in Occidental this week; 5266 needs new tires.

The Call Report for January:

Nature of Call Number of Calls
Medical Aid 9
Hazardous Condition 11
Traffic Collision 1
Page 7 aof 43

2023-02-14 Draft CSD Board Minutes.docx Page 1 of 3



6. Consent Calendar ltems
On a motion by Director DeBeaune, seconded by Director Griswold, the Board moved to approve
the minutes for the January 10, 2023, meeting and the financials for the month of January 2023.
VOTE: 5-0-0 by roll call:

Director Vote

P. Barry Ave
M. Berry Aye
H. Canelis Ave
D. DeBeaune Ave
S. Griswold Ave

7. Action ltems

a. Resolution 22/23-13 Proclamation of a Local Emergency for the Cazadero Community
Services District, County of Sonoma, State of California, Ratifying the Proclamation of a
State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, and Authorizing Remote
Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the Cazadero Community Services
District for the Period January 1, 2023, Through February 1, 2023, Pursuant to Brown
Act Provisions — After Board discussion of the coming end of the State of Emergency on
February 28, 2023, and a return to in-person meetings in March, 2023, on a motion by Director
Griswold, seconded by Director DeBeaune, the Board moved to move the monthly Board
meetings to the second Wednesday of the month. VOTE: 5-0-0 by roll call:

Director Vote
P. Barry Aye
M. Berry Aye
H. Canelis Aye
D. DeBeaune Aye
S. Griswold Aye

b. Replace Leaking Firehouse Stove — Director Griswold reported that the new stove has been
delivered to Castino’s and everything in on track so far. After further Board discussion, item
tabled to March meeting

c. Fiber Optic Grant and Emergency Communications — Tony Goodwin reported we now have
a functional siren controller and the emergency phone has been fixed at Station 1; he has
received volunteer commitments to keep the GMRS system going; a volunteer work party will
be working at the Sheridan site to develop the site for one of the three repeaters, and he is still
working with RedCom to get a better radio signal in the canyon. After further Board discussion,
item tabled to March meeting.

d. Playground Equipment — Directors M. Berry and P. Barry discussed the readiness of the
playground site and delivery of the equipment from Ross Recreation Equipment Inc. After
further Board discussion, item tabled to March meeting.

e. Alcohol sales and/or consumption at fire department events held on CCSD property or
held off-site — Director P. Barry reported he had talked to legal counsel and the insurance
company but neither had prepared statements, he will follow up with them and will look into
any liability changes in recent years; he and Chief Krausmann explained that the Firefighters
Association will no longer be serving alcohol at events for ethical and moral reasons, which
opens the door for other groups to pour. Various members of the public voiced their concerns.
After further Board discussion, item tabled to March meeting.

f. Alcohol sales and/or consumption on CCSD property at events hosted by third parties —
Item discussed with above item, item tabled to March meeting.

Page 8 of 43
2023-02-14 Draft CSD Board Minutes.docx Page 2 of 3




g. Use of firehall (including tables, chairs, fencing) by third parties — The Directors and
Chief Krausmann discussed District and Fire Department responsibilities for when hall is
rented, there are no written policies. Chief Krausmann mentioned that the Fire Department
doesn’t always have the bodies to set things up for functions due to the declining number of
volunteers (drill is every other Thursday now for those interested). Director P. Barry said the
liaison for an event needs to communicate the event’s needs with the fire chief and/or the Board
president. Various members of the public voiced their concerns. After further Board discussion,
item tabled to March meeting.

8. Discussion Items
a. Update on grants — Director P. Barry reported there is an opportunity for a new State
Parks grant in the Board packet, the tennis courts resurfacing is eligible, need someone to
apply for it; he sent an email to Director M. Berry for signoff on existing State Parks grant.
- Director M. Berry mentioned it look like they changed their terms, she will look into that;
she will apply for the new grant, which is a 50-50 grant.

b. Vegetation Management — Director P. Barry reported that they did not work December
through January due to weather, they will start up again when the weather settles; he would
like to use 5243 to haul the chipper, it offers fire protection too, can keep it in service so it
can be used down the road if needed.

9. Committee Reports
a. Park Ad Hoc 2020: Included in Playground Equipment discussion.

10. Correspondence
Reviewed.

11. Financial Reports
AA Kulczewski reported bills totaling $39,486.49 were presented for payment. High cost of
Frontier phone bills was questioned by Director P. Barry and Director Griswold, AA Kulczewski
to send copies of bills to them for review and possible consolidation.

12. Adjournment
On a motion by Director M. Berry, Seconded by Director Griswold, the Board moved to adjourn
the meeting at 8:01 PM. VOTE: 5-0-0 by roll call:

Director Vote
P. Barry Aye
M. Berry Aye
H. Canelis Aye
D. DeBeaune Aye
S Griswold Aye
Paul Barry Maureen Barry
Homer Canelis Daina DeBeaune
Scott Griswold Date
Page 9 of 43

2023-02-14 Draft CSD Board Minutes.docx Page 3 of 3



ACTION ITEMS



CAZADERO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
PO BOX 508
CAZADERO CA 95421-0508

RESOLUTION 22/23-15

SETTING A LOCATION, A DAY AND A TIME FOR REGULAR MONTHLY MEETINGS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to establish the location, day, and time for the regular
monthly meeting;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the regular monthly meetings of the Cazadero Community
Services District Board of Directors, for the calendar year 2023, will be held at the Cazadero Fire
Department, 5980 Cazadero Highway, Cazadero, on the second Wednesday of each month. The
meetings will begin at 6:30 p.m.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was introduced by Director who

moved its adoption, seconded by Director , and adopted on a
roll call vote of the members of said Board as follows:

Director P. Barry
Director M. Berry
Director H. Canelis
Director D. DeBeaune
Director S. Griswold

[

AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT

WHEREUPON, the President of the Board declared the foregoing Resolution adopted, and

SO ORDERED.
Paul Barry, Board President Maureen Berry, Secretary of the Board
Homer Canelis, Director Daina DeBeaune, Director
Scott Griswold, Director Date

Page 11 of 43



3/4/23, 3:56 PM Xfinity Connect Fwd_ IMPORTANT_ APPROVAL OF JPAAGREEMENT OF FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly Fire ...
P. L. Barry <cazhwy©gmail.com> 31312023 1:49 PM

Fwd: IMPORTANT: APPROVAL OF JPAAGREEMENT OF FIRE
RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly Fire Agencies Self
Insurance Systems (FASIS))

To CAZADERO COMM SVS DISTRICT <cazaderocsd@comcast.net> » krausmannd@msn.com

---------- Forwarded message --------—-

From: Brock, Stacey <Stacey.Brock@sedgwick.com>

Date: Thu, Mar 2, 2023 at 1:00 PM

Subject: IMPORTANT: APPROVAL OF JPAAGREEMENT OF FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly
Fire Agencies Self Insurance Systems (FASIS))

To:

Cc: Carmen Berry <cberry @smithmooreassoc.com>, Carmen Berry <cberry @ojpa.org>, mfelz@firebenefits.org
<mfelz@firebenefits.org>, Jobe, Jennifer <Jennifer. Jobe@sedgwick.com>, Morrison, Colleen
<Colleen.Morrison@sedawick.com>, Brock, Stacey <Stacey.Brock@sedgwick.com>

Good afternoon, FASIS Members,

The Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) and Fire Districts Association of California
Employment Benefits Association (FDAC EBA) will consolidate, effective July 1, 2023, as Fire Risk
Management Services (FRMS). FRMS is a multi-line risk pool providing workers' compensation
and employee benefits coverages to eligible fire districts in California.

Attached is a memorandum from Jennifer Jobe, FASIS Executive Director, providing information
regarding the necessary written approval of the Amended and Restated JPA. Also attached are
sample resolutions for use in obtaining authorization from your district's governing body to execute
the Agreement for participation in FRMS, effective July 1, 2023. As noted in the memorandum,
execution of the Agreement is due no later than June 20, 2023.

If you have any questions or we can provide any assistance, please don't hesitate to contact me.

Regards, Stacey

Stacey Brock | Administrative Assistant
Sedgwick

1750 Creekside Oaks Dr. Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95833

DIRECT 916.290.4621
www.sedgwick.com | Caring counts®

Page 12 of 43

hitps://connect.xfi n ity.com/appsuite/v=7.10.5-18.20221201.064856/pri nt.html?print_16779741 32376 1/2




3/4/23, 3:56 PM Xfinity Connect Fwd_ IMPORTANT_ APPROVAL OF JPAAGREEMENT OF FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly Fire ...

Any personal data acquired, processed or shared by us will be lawfully processed in line with applicable data
protection legislation. If you have any questions regarding how we process personal data refer to our Privacy
Notice. Any communication including this email and files/attachments transmitted with it are confidential and are
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If this message has been sent to
you in error, you must not copy, distribute or disclose of the information it contains and you must notify us
immediately (contact is within the privacy policy) and delete the message from your system.

e JPAApproval Memo with JPA 02.28.23.pdf (498 KB)
e FASIS Sample Resolutions (2) to Participate in FRMS.docx (42 KB)
e image002.jpg (7 KB)

Page 13 of 43
hitps://connect.xfi n ity.com/appsuite/v=7.10.5-18.20221201.064856/pri nt.htmi?print_16779741 32376 2/2




FDAC
EBA

FRFUTTRE SERTIE S ETROANTE

RMS

Fire Risk Ma

TO: FASIS Member Districts
FROM: Jennifer Jobe, FASIS Executive Director
DATE: March 2, 2023

SUBJECT: n AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF FIRE
RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly Fire Agencies Self Insurance
Systems (FASIS))

The Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) and Fire Districts Association of California
Employment Benefits Association (FDAC EBA) will consolidate, effective July 1, 2023, to form Fire
Risk Management Services (FRMS). FRMS is a multi-line risk pool providing workers’
compensation and employee benefits coverage to eligible fire districts in California.

The FASIS and FDAC EBA Consolidation Advisory Committee has met regularly over the past
twelve months to work toward streamlining the financial and administrative services via a
consolidation of the two programs. At the Special Board of Directors Meeting on
February 22, 2023, the FASIS and FDAC EBA Boards unanimously approved the FRMS Amended
and Restated Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), effective July 1, 2023.

In accordance with the Joint Powers Agreement: Creating the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System,
Article 30:

“This Agreement may be amended at any time by the written approval of two-thirds
(2/3) of the Member Districts signatory to it.”

Attached is the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire Risk Management
Services. The Agreement requires approval under Section 31: Execution in Counterparts and must be
received in our office no later than Jume 20, 2023. Signatories to the Agreement will require
approval from their respective governing bodies. To aid in this endeavor, attached are sample
resolutions for use by either 1) members of FASIS only; or 2) members of both FASIS and FDAC
EBA. The sample resolutions allow for approval of the Agreement and authorize the designated
executive officer to execute, thus enabling participation in FRMS, effective July 1, 2023.

Upon approval from your district’s governing body, the Agreement under Section 31 (page 20) must
be executed using one of the following options:

1. Original Signature: print Section 31 (page 20) of the Agreement, sign and return via USPS.

2. Electronic Signature - Email: print Section 31 (page 20) of the Agreement, sign, scan, and
return via email.

3. Electronic Signature - Acrobat Sign: electronically access the Agreement, sign, and submit,

Page 14 of 43
Serving the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Needs for Fire Districts in California Since 1984



When utilizing options #1 or #2 above, please submit the executed Agreement via USPS, email, or
fax to:

Colleen Morrison, FASIS Analyst
c/o Sedgwick
1750 Creekside Oaks Dr., Ste. 200
Sacramento, CA 95833
(916) 244-1199 — FAX
colleen.morrison@sedgwick.com

Your attention to this important matter is appreciated. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please contact Colleen Morrison at (916) 244-1176 or colleen.morrison@sedgwick.com.

Attachments:
1. Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of Fire Risk Management Services
2. Sample Resolution Authorizing Participation in Fire Risk Management Services — FASIS

3. Sample Resolution Authorizing Participation in Fire Risk Management Services — FASIS &
FDAC EBA

Page 15 of 43
Serving the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Needs for Fire Districts in California Since 1984



AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
OF FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES
(Formerly Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS))

This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of Fire Risk Management Services
(“FRMS”) (“Agreement”), formerly known as the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (“FASIS”)
1s made and entered into by and among the public agencies organized and existing under the laws
of the State of California who have or may hereafter execute this Joint Powers Agreement (the
“Members”) pursuant to the authority conferred by Government Code Section 6500 et seq.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the Members who have executed this Agreement is a “public agency”
as that term is defined in Section 6500 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. provides that two or more
public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties;
and

WHEREAS, California Labor Code Section 3700 (c) authorizes public agencies, including
members of a pooling arrangement under a joint powers authority, to fund and self-insure for their
Worker’s Compensation claims liability; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public
agency may self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, purchase insurance
through a surplus lines broker, or any combination of these; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 989 and 990 authorize a local public
agency to self-insure itself and its employees against tort and inverse condemmnation liability; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local
public agencies may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one
or more of the methods specified in Government Code Section 990.4; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.6 provides that the cost of such
insurance or self-insurance is an authorized and appropriate expenditure of public funds; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 53200, 53201(a), 53202, 53202.2,
65205, 53205.1, 53205.16, 53206, 53208 and Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et seq.
provide that a local public agency may provide for any health and welfare benefits for the benefit
of its existing and retired officers, employees, and members of its legislative body, which health
and welfare benefits include, but are not limited to medical, hospital surgical, disability, legal
expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection insurance or benefits, whether provided on an
insurance basis, self-funded basis, or some combination of insurance and self-funding; and

Page 16 of 43



WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53202 states that in providing such health and
welfare benefits, a public agency may approve self-funded plans or may contract with one or more
admitted insurers, health service organizations or legal service organizations for such plans of
health and welfare benefits as the public agency determines to be in the best interest of the public
agency and its existing and retired officers, employees and legislative body; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53205 provides that the legislative body of a public
agency may expend public agency funds for the premiums, dues or other charges for health and
welfare benefits of its existing and retired officers, employees, and members of its legislative body;
and

WHEREAS, each of the Members which are parties to this Agreement desire to join
together with other Members in order to collectively establish, operate, manage, administer and
fund programs of insurance and/or self-insurance for workers’ compensation benefits,
employment benefits, general liability, property damage, and other coverages to be determined;
and

WHEREAS, each of the Members which are parties to this Agreement find it to be to its
mutual advantage and in the public benefit to utilize any power common to them, and all those
powers available to a Joint Powers Authority pursuant to the Joint Powers Act at Government
Code Section 6500 et seq. (the “Act”), to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement specified in Section
3 hereof, including establishing pools for self-insured losses and purchasing excess or re-insurance
and administrative services in connection with the Joint Protection Programs (the “Coverage
Programs”) for the collective benefit of the Members; and

WHEREAS, certain Members have previously executed that certain Amended Joint
Powers Agreement of FASIS dated October 13, 2005 (the “FASIS JPA”), which agreement such
Members desire to amend and restate by this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this Amendment and Restatement is intended to allow members of Fire
Districts Association of California Employment Benefits Authority (“FDAC EBA”) to join FRMS
and share in consolidated administration and governance of programs by amending and restating
its existing Joint Powers Agreement to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of each Member has determined that it in the best interests
of the Member, and in the public interest, to execute this Agreement and participate in FRMS as a
Member;

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual advantage of and in the best interest of the parties to this
Joint Powers Agreement to continue and expand this Joint Powers Authority for the purposes
stated.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the mutual benefits, covenants and
agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Page 17 of 43



SECTION 1:
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this Agreement:

L.

“Act” means Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5,
Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code, as amended.

“Administrator” shall mean the employee or third-party contractor who is appointed by
the Board of Directors to manage the business and affairs of FRMS under the policy
direction of the Board of Directors.

“Assessment” means an amount additional to a Member’s initial contribution or annual
contribution, which the Board of Directors determines, in accordance with this
Agreement and/or the Bylaws, that a Member or Former Member owes on account of its
participation in a Coverage Program for a given Program year.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the governing body of FRMS.

“Bylaws” means the Bylaws of FRMS adopted by the Board of Directors, as they may
be amended from time to time.

“Claim” shall mean a demand made by or against a Member or Former Member which
1s or may be covered by one of the Coverage Programs approved by the Board of
Directors.

“Contribution” shall mean the amount determined by the Board of Directors to be the
appropriate sum of money which a Member must pay at the commencement of or during
a Program Year in exchange for the benefits provided by a Coverage Program.

“Coverage Program” shall mean the specific type of Joint Protection Program as set forth
in the terms, conditions and exclusions of the Coverage Documents for insured or self-
insured losses, and the purchasing of excess or re-insurance and administrative services
with respect to such losses. On the effective date, FRMS will operate two (2) Coverage
Programs, the Workers’ Compensation Coverage Program for workers’ compensation
claims, and the Employment Benefits Coverage Program for claims related to medical,
hospital surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection
insurance or benefits. FRMS may add additional programs later.

“Coverage Documents” shall mean the Declarations, Memorandum of Coverages,
Coverage Agreements, Endorsements, Policies of Insurance or any other documents that
provide the terms, conditions, limits and exclusions of coverage afforded by a Coverage
Program.

Page 18 of 43



10.

11.

12.

k3.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

“District” shall mean a special district and political subdivision of the State of California
as defined in Government Code Section 56000 et seq.

“Duly Constituted Board Meeting” shall mean any meeting of the Board of Directors
noticed and held pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act and at which a quorum is
determined to be present at the beginning of said meeting.

“Estimated Contribution” shall mean the amount which the Board of Directors estimates
will be the appropriate contribution for a Member’s participation in a Coverage Program
for a Program Year.

“Excess or Re-Insurance” shall mean that insurance that may be purchased on behalf of
FRMS and/or the Members to protect the funds of the Members or Former Members
against catastrophic losses or an unusual frequency of losses in a particular Coverage
Program during a Program Year in excess of any self-insured retention maintained by
FRMS for that Coverage Program.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of 12 months which is established by the Board of
Directors as the fiscal year of FRMS.

“Former Member” shall mean a Member which was a signatory to this Agreement (or
the prior FASIS Agreement) but which has withdrawn from, or been involuntarily
terminated from participation in FMRS.

“Joint Protection Program” shall mean a Coverage Program offered by FRMS, separate
and distinct from other Coverage Programs, wherein Members shall jointly pool their
losses and claims, jointly purchase excess or re-insurance and administrative and other
services including claims adjusting, data processing, risk management consulting and
brokerage, loss prevention, legal, accounting and auditing and related services.

“Member” shall mean a public agency which has signed this Agreement, which qualifies
as a Member under the provisions of this Agreement and the Bylaws, and which has been
approved for membership by the Board of Directors.

“Memorandum of Coverage” shall mean a document issued by FRMS for each Coverage
Program specifying the coverages and limits provided to the Members participating in
that Coverage Program.

“Pooling” shall mean group self-insurance as permitted by Government Code Section
990.8, Labor Code Section 3700 and Government Code Section 53202.

“Program Year” shall mean a 12-month period of time determined by the Board of
Directors, during which a particular Coverage Program is in effect.

Page 19 of 43



21. “Retained Earnings” shall mean an account reflecting the accumulated earnings of a
Coverage Program after payment of all losses, expenses and obligations of that Coverage
Program.

22. “Risk Management” shall mean the process of identifying, evaluating, reducing,
transferring and eliminating risks. Risk Management includes, but is not limited to,
various methods of funding claims payments, purchasing insurance, legal defense of
claims, controlling losses, and determining self-insurance retention levels and the amount
of reserves for potential claims.

SECTION 2:
FRMS AS SUCCESSOR TO AND EXPANSION OF FASIS

FASIS was originally formed on July 1, 1984, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code
Section 6500 et seq. as a joint powers authority to provide a program of pooling of self-insured
workers’ compensation losses of its members, which members were defined as California fire
protection districts formed and operating under the provisions of California Health and Safety
Code Section 13800 et seq. and California community services districts providing fire suppression
and emergency services formed and operating under the provisions of California Government
Code Section 61000, et seq. FASIS has continued to provide this self-insurance program up to the
effective date of this Agreement.

As of the effective date of this Agreement, the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System shall be known
as Fire Risk Management Services, referred to herein as FRMS. Pursuant to Government Code
Sections 6506 and 6507, from its inception, FRMS has, is, and shall be a public entity separate and
independent from the Members which is governed exclusively by its Board of Directors (“Board™).

FDAC EBA was originally formed on July 1, 2005, pursuant to the provisions of Government
Code Section 6500 et seq. as a joint powers authority to provide employment benefits programs
including medical, hospital surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income
protection insurance or benefits, whether provided on an insurance basis, self-funded basis, or
some combination of insurance and self-funding, to any California public agency including special
districts, cities, and joint powers authorities which were formed with the power to provide fire
suppression and emergency services. FDAC EBA has continued to provide this employment
benefits program up to the effective date of this Agreement.

This Agreement is being amended and restated in part to allow members of Fire Districts
Association of California Employment Benefits Authority (“FDAC EBA™) to join FRMS and
share in consolidated administration and governance of programs. Accordingly, as of the effective
date of this Agreement, the membership of FRMS shall consist of the members of FASIS, as well
as the members of FDAC EBA that have approved this Agreement. Future membership in FRMS
is open to public agencies throughout California that meet the membership requirements specified
herein and in the Bylaws and are approved for membership by the Board of Directors.

Page 20 of 43



SECTION 3:
PURPOSE

This Agreement is entered into by the Members pursuant to Government Code Sections 989, 990,
990.4, 990.6, 990.8, 52200 et seq., 6500 et seq. and Labor Code Section 3700, et seq., in order to
provide, subject to the Coverage Documents, workers’ compensation and employment benefits
coverages, and/or coverages for other risks which the Board of Directors may determine.

Additional purposes of this Agreement are: (1) to reduce the amount and frequency of losses, and
to decrease the costs incurred by Members in the handling and litigation of claims; (2) to expand
the breadth and reduce the costs of health and welfare benefits including, but are not limited to
medical, hospital, surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection
insurance or benefits, whether provided on an insurance basis, self-funded basis, or some
combination of insurance and self-funding. These purposes shall be accomplished through the
exercise of the powers of the Members jointly in the creation of a separate public entity, Fire Risk
Management Services (“FMRS”) to establish and administer Coverage Programs as set forth
herein and in the Bylaws.

It is also the purpose of this Agreement to provide for the inclusion at subsequent dates of such
additional Members organized and existing as California public agencies as may desire to become
parties to this Agreement and Members of FRMS, subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4:
MEMBERSHIP

Each Member which is a party to this Agreement must be a public agency which is duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of California with the power to provide at least one of the
following services: (1) fire suppression services, (2) emergency medical services, including
emergency disease response, prevention and control services; (3) hazardous material response
services (4) medical transport and/or ambulance services, including emergency transportation
services (5) rescue services; (6) any other emergency response services provided pursuant to the
California Emergency Services Act (Government Code Section 8550 et seq.). “Emergency” is
defined as any condition of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and/or property
caused by such conditions as air pollution, fire, flood, hazardous material incident, storm,
epidemic, riot, drought, plant or animal infestations or disease, earthquake, terrorism, or sudden
and severe energy shortage. Each Member must be approved for participation in the Authority in
the manner provided in the Bylaws of the Authority.

There shall be two (2) classes of Membership: (1) Voting Members; and (2) Non-voting Members.
Voting Members shall be public agencies organized as a fire protection district formed and
operating pursuant to the terms of California Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et seq. All
other Members shall be Non-voting Members.

The rights and obligations of Voting Members shall be as described in the Bylaws.

Page 21 of 43



SECTION 5:
PARTIES TO AGREEMENT

Each Member which has signed this Agreement certifies that it intends to and does contract with
FRMS, and with all other parties who have signed this Agreement, and, in addition, with such
other parties which may later be added as a party to and may sign this Agreement. Each party to
this Agreement, which has or may hereafter sign this Agreement, also certifies that the withdrawal
of any party from this Agreement by voluntary withdrawal, involuntary termination, or otherwise,
shall not affect this Agreement nor such party’s intent to contract with the other remaining parties
to this Agreement.

SECTION 6:
TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective as to existing Members of FASIS on the later of July 1,
2023, or the date on which the last of two-thirds of such Members have executed this Agreement
(“effective date”). This Agreement shall become effective as to existing Members of FDAC EBA
on the later of Julyl, 2023 or the date on which two-thirds of its members have executed this
Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective as to each new Member upon: (1) approval of its
membership by the Board of Directors of the FRMS; (2) execution of this Agreement by the new
Member and by FRMS; and (3) by payment by the new Member of its initial contribution for
participation in one of the Coverage Programs offered by the FRMS.

SECTION 7:
POWERS OF FRMS

FRMS shall have all the powers common to its Members and all additional powers set forth in the
Joint Powers Authority Act, and is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of
said common powers, including, but not limited to, any or all of the following:

(1) to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the assignment of
contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes of FRMS, or which were
entered into by a Member or Former Member prior to joining FRMS, and to acquire
assets, incur liabilities, and resolve and make claims;

(2) to accept an assignment from the FDAC EBA of all its assets, obligations and liabilities
(including claims and contracts in existence at the time of consolidation) in order to
benefit the Members and Former Members participating in the FDAC EBA employment
benefits coverage program; provided, that except for the fair and equitable allocation of
administrative and overhead expenses, funds from such assignment shall not be
commingled and shall be separately accounted for as provided in this Agreement and the
Bylaws;

Page 22 of 43



€)

4)

()
(©)

O

®
€
(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)

(14)

(15)

to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations; including those which are not debis,
liabilities or other obligations of the Members or Former Members, or any of them;

to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or Former Members
for participation in a Coverage Program;

to employ agents and employees and/or to contract for services from third-party
consultants;

to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services, and other forms of assistance
from persons, firms, corporations and government entities;

to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, funds, contributions, donations, and any
other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and government entities;

to acquire property by gift, grant, exchange, devise, or purchase;

to hold, lease, convey, sell, encumber, or dispose of property;

to sue and to be sued in its own name;

to issue or caused to be issue bonded and other indebtedness, and pledge any property or
revenues as security to the extent permitted by law by Articles 2 and 4 of the Act or
otherwise, including, but not limited to, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued
on behalf of FRMS or its Members;

to obtain in its own name all necessary permits, licenses, opinions and rulings;
whenever necessary to facilitate the exercise of its powers, to form and administer
nonprofit corporations to perform one or more of the functions which FRMS is
empowered to perform, or to perform any other proper corporate function, and to enter
into agreements with such nonprofit corporations;

to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and provisions of this
Agreement (including the provision of all other appropriate ancillary coverages for the

benefit of Members or Former Members, or otherwise authorized by law or the Act; and

to exercise all powers and perform all acts as otherwise provided in the Bylaws.

Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof, and in the manner provided by law
and in accordance with Section 6509 of the Act. The foregoing powers shall be subject to the
restrictions upon the manner of exercising such powers pertaining to the Member or Former
Member designated in the Bylaws.

Page 23 of 43



SECTION 8:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All powers of FRMS shall be exercised by, and its property controlled and its affairs conducted by
and through its Board of Directors. Said Board of Directors is hereby designated as the agency to
administer and execute this Agreement pursuant to Government Code Section 6506.

The Board of Directors shall be composed of no more than fifteen (15) and no less than eleven
(11) individuals, each of whom is elected by a majority vote of Voting Members participating in a
Coverage Program, as specified in the Bylaws. Each member of the Board of Directors shall have
one vote. The terms for Directors, procedures for electing Directors, and the composition of the
Board of Directors shall be as set forth in the Bylaws. The Board of Directors shall have the
authority to conduct all business and govern all affairs of this Joint Powers Authority under the
provisions hereof and pursuant to law and shall have such powers and functions as are provided
for herein, in the Bylaws, or by law.

SECTION 9:
POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall have such powers as provided in this Agreement and the Bylaws and
such additional powers as necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement and
the Bylaws, including, but not limited to the following:

(a) Exercise all powers and conduct all business of this Joint Powers Authority.
(b) Determine the details of and select the Coverage Programs to be offered by FRMS;

(c) Provide for and develop various services including, but not limited to, financial
administration, insurance consulting and brokerage services; claims adjustment services,
loss control and risk management services; accountancy, auditing and actuarial services;
and legal and legislative advocacy services, either through its own employees or contracts
with third parties.

(d) Appoint and provide policy direction to the Administrator, appoint committees, appoint
staff, and employ such persons as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the
administration of this Joint Powers Authority.

(¢) Determine and purchase all necessary insurance coverage, including Excess insurance,
Re-insurance, liability insurance, director’s and officer’s liability insurance, and such
other insurance as FRMS may deem necessary or proper to carry out the Coverage
Programs offered by the Authority, and to protect the employees of FRMS and the
employees of the Members.

() Fix and collect Contributions and Assessments from participating Members in
consideration for participation in the Coverage Programs offered by FRMS.

9

Page 24 of 43



(®

()

®

)

(k)

M

(m)

(n)

(0)
)]

@
®
(s)

Deposit all funds received in appropriate separate bank accounts in the name of Fire Risk
Management Services.

Invest funds on hand in any manner authorized by law for the investment of funds of a
public agency.

Direct the payment, adjustment, compromise, settlement and defense of all claims as
provided for in the Coverage Documents involving a Member during their period of
membership in and participation in a Coverage Program.

Expend funds of FRMS only for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the
Agreement and the Bylaws as they now exist or may hereafter be amended.

Obtain a fidelity bond in such amount as the Board of Directors may determine for any
person or persons who have charge of or the authority to expend funds of the FRMS.

Acquire property by gift, grant, exchange, devise, or purchase; or hold, lease, convey,
sell, encumber, or dispose of all property necessary or appropriate to carry out the powers
and operations of FRMS.

Establish policies and procedures for the operation of FRMS.

Enter into any and all contracts or agreements necessary or appropriate to carry out the
purposes and functions of FRMS.

To prepare the annual operating budget of FRMS for each fiscal year.

To engage, retain and discharge agents, representatives, firms or other organizations as
the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of FRMS.

To exercise general supervisory power and policy control over the Executive Director.
To transact any other business which is within the powers of the Board of Directors.
Elect officers of FRMS.

SECTION 10:
OFFICERS

The officers of FRMS shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant
Treasurer, and Administrator. The position of Treasurer shall be filled by a person who either is
the treasurer of a Member, a certified public accountant, or one of the officers, employees, or
contracted consultants of FRMS. The Treasurer shall have no vote unless the Treasurer is also a

Director.

10

Page 25 of 43



The Treasurer shall serve at the discretion of the President. The Treasurer shall be the depository
of and have custody of all the funds of FRMS, from whatever source. The Treasurer shall comply
with the duties and responsibilities of the office as set forth in subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, of
Section 6505.5 of the Government Code. The Board shall require the Treasurer to file with FRMS
an official bond in the amount to be fixed by the Board. FRMS shall pay the cost of bond premiums
required by this section.

In lieu of the designation of a treasurer and auditor as set forth in Government Code Section
6505.5, FRMS elects to appoint the Treasurer of FRMS to said positions under the provision of
Government Code Section 6505.6. FRMS further elects to be governed by and incorporates herein
all other provisions contained within Government Code Section 6505.6, including but not limited
to the requirement that the Treasurer shall cause an independent audit to be made by a certified
public accountant, or public accountant, in compliance with Section 6505. The treasurer, or the
treasurer’s designee, shall maintain or cause to be maintained all accounting or other financial
records FRMS and shall file all financial reports required of FRMS and shall perform such other
duties as the Board may specify.

All offices shall be filled and have the powers and responsibilities as prescribed in the Bylaws.

SECTION 11:
RESTRICTIONS ON POWER

Such powers enumerated in Section 8 hereof are subject to the restrictions upon the manner of
exercising power by the California public agency which is a Member and which is named in the
Bylaws, pursuant to California Government Code Section 6509.

SECTION 12:
COMPLIANCE WITH THE BROWN ACT

All meetings of the Board, including regular, adjourned regular and special meetings shall be
called, noticed, held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act,
California Government Code section 54950 et seq.

SECTION 13:
BYLAWS

The Board shall promulgate Bylaws to govern day-to-day operations of FRMS. The Board may
amend the Bylaws from time to time as provided for in the Bylaws. The initial Bylaws of FRMS,
a copy of which is attached hereto and marked Exhibit A, are hereby adopted as the initial Bylaws
of FRMS. Each party to this Agreement by the execution hereof agrees to be bound by and to
comply with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of said Bylaws as they now exist
or may hereafter be amended, and agrees that any violation of the Bylaws shall be a violation of
this Agreement. FRMS shall operate and conduct its business and affairs pursuant to the terms of

11

Page 26 of 43



this Agreement and said Bylaws. In the event any provisions of the Bylaws conflict with a
provision of this Agreement, the provision contained in this Agreement shall control.

SECTION 14:
COVERAGE PROGRAMS

FRMS shall maintain such types and levels of coverage for Coverage Programs as determined by
the Board of Directors. The coverage afforded under one or more Coverage Programs may include
protection for workers’ compensation liability, employment health and welfare benefits, and any
other risks which the Board of Directors may determine to be advisable. More than one type of
coverage may be afforded under a single Coverage Program. FRMS shall describe the coverage
and operation of each Coverage Program in writing utilizing documents such as Memorandums of
Coverage, Master Program Documents, or other written policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors may arrange for purchase of Excess or Re-insurance. FRMS shall not be
liable to any Member or to any other person or organization if such excess or re-insurance policies
are terminated, cancelled or non-renewed without prior notice to one or more Members, or if there
is a reduction in the type or amounts of coverage afforded under a Coverage Program by reason of
any change in coverage in a succeeding excess or re-insurance policy, even if such reduction occur
without prior notice to one or more Members.

SECTION 15:
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE COVERAGE PROGRAMS

The Board of Directors shall establish the coverage afforded by each Coverage Program, the
amount of Contributions and Assessments, the precise cost allocation plans and formulas, provide
for the handling of Claims, and specify the amounts and types of Excess or Re-insurance to be
obtained. The Contributions and Assessments for each Coverage Program shall be determined by
the Board of Directors as set forth herein, in the Bylaws, or in the controlling documents for each
Coverage Program.

SECTION 16:
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

(a) Annual Budget. FRMS shall, pursuant to the Bylaws, annually adopt an operating
budget, including budgets for each Coverage Program.

(b) Funds and Accounts. FRMS shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as
required by the Board of Directors and as required by generally accepted accounting
principles, including separate funds and accounts for each Coverage Program. Books and
records of FRMS shall be open to any inspection at all reasonable times by authorized
representatives of Members, or as otherwise required by law.

(c) Investments. Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution
providing for the investment of moneys held thereunder, FRMS shall have the power to

12

Page 27 of 43



(d)

(e)

invest any money in the treasury that is not required for the immediate necessities of
FRMS, as the Board determines advisable, in the same manner as local agencies pursuant
to Government Code Section 53601 et seq. as such provisions may be amended or
supplemented.

No Commingling. The funds, reserves, and accounts of each Coverage Program shall
not be commingled and shall be accounted for separately; provided, however, that
administration and overhead expenses of FRMS not related to a specific Coverage
Program may be fairly and equitably allocated among Coverage Programs as determined
by the Board of Directors. Investments and cash accounts may be combined for
administrative convenience, but separate accounting shall be made for balances of
individual funds and Coverage Program revenues and expenses.

Annual Audit. The Board shall provide for a certified, annual audit of the accounts and
records of FRMS, in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws.

SECTION 17:
SERVICES PROVIDED BY FRMS

FRMS may provide, in the discretion of the Board of Directors, the following services in
connection with this Agreement:

(@

(b)

©

(d
(©)

®

®

(h)

To provide or procure coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance funds and
commercial insurance, as well as Excess or Re-insurance and umbrella insurance, by
negotiation, bid or purchase;

To assist Members in obtaining insurance coverage for risks not included within the
coverages of FRMS;

To assist risk managers with the implementation of risk management functions as they
relate to risks covered by the Coverage Programs offered by FRMS;

To provide loss control and safety consulting services to Members;

To provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for Claims covered by the
Coverage Programs;

To provide loss analysis and control through the use of statistical analysis, data
processing, and record and file retention services, in order to identify high exposure
operations and to evaluate proper levels of self-insured retention and deductibles;

To conduct risk management and claims audits relating to the participation of Members
in the Coverage Programs;

To provide such other services as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

13

Page 28 of 43



SECTION 18:
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS

Members or Former Members shall have the following responsibilities, which shall survive the
withdrawal from, or involuntary termination of participation in a Coverage Program, or
membership in FRMS:

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

©

®

(@

(h)

Each Member shall designate an individual to be responsible for the risk management
functions within that Member and to serve as a liaison between the Member and FRMS
as to risk management.

Each Member shall consider all recommendations of FRMS concerning unsafe practices
and/or hazard mitigation, and each Member participating in the Workers’ Compensation
Coverage Program shall implement and maintain an injury and illness prevention
program as required by the California Labor Code within ninety (90) days of inception
into program.

Each benefits program Member shall maintain its own set of records, including a loss
log, in all categories of risk covered by each Coverage Program in which it participates
to assure accuracy of FRMS’ loss reporting system, unless it is deemed no longer
necessary by the Board of Directors;

Each Member participating in the Workers’ Compensation Program shall report job-
related accidents or illnesses to the appropriate claims administrator as soon as
practicable after notification of the accident or illness, and no later than 48 hours after
notification, shall use the format specified by the claims administrator when making job-
related accident reports, and make any other required notifications to government
agencies, including Cal-OSHA, when required;

Each Member shall pay its Contribution, and any adjustments thereto, and any
Assessments within the specified time period set forth in the invoice, or as otherwise set
forth in the Bylaws. After withdrawal or termination, each Former Member or its
successor shall promptly pay to FRMS its share of any additional Contributions,
adjustments or Assessments, if any, as required of it by the Board of Directors;

Each Member or Former Member shall provide FRMS with such other information or
assistance as may be necessary for FRMS to carry out the Coverage Programs in which
the Member or Former Member participates or has participated;

Each Member or Former Member shall in any and all ways cooperate with and assist
FRMS and any insurer of FRMS, in all matters relating to this Agreement and covered
Claims;

Each Member or Former Member shall comply with all Bylaws, rules, regulations and
operating policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors.

14

Page 29 of 43



SECTION 19:
NEW MEMBERS

FRMS shall allow entry into its Coverage Programs of new Members, only upon approval of the
Board of Directors, with any conditions or limitations that the Board deems appropriate. In order
to become a Member and remain a Member, any public agency must participate in at least one
Coverage Program, pay the Contributions required for such participation, and shall be authorized
to exercise the common powers set forth in this Agreement.

SECTION 20:
WITHDRAWAL

Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from this Agreement only at the end of any applicable
Program Year and only if?

(a) The Member has been a party to this Amended and Restated Agreement for not less than
three (3) full Program Years as of the date of the proposed withdrawal;

(b) The Member submits at least 90 (ninety) days signed written withdrawal notification in
accordance with the Bylaws;

(¢) In order to withdraw from the Agreement, the Member must have completed the three
(3) full Program Year participation requirement for each Coverage Program in which the
Member participated at the time of withdrawal.

Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Coverage Program only at the end of
any applicable Program Year and only if:

(@ The Member has participated in a Coverage Program for at least three (3) full Program
Years;

(b) The Member is a participant in another Coverage Program; and

(c) The Member submits at least ninety (90) days signed written withdrawal notification in
accordance with the Bylaws.

In the event that the three (3) year participation requirement for any Coverage Program has not
been met, for each Coverage Program the withdrawing Member participated in at the time of
withdrawal for less than three (3) years, such withdrawing Member shall be obligated to pay all
Contributions and Assessments as if that Member had remained in such Coverage Program for the
required three (3) full years.

In the event the notice of withdrawal is not provided as required above, any such withdrawing

Member shall, with respect to each Coverage Program the Member participated in, be obligated to
pay any and all Contributions and Assessments for the next full Program Year.

15

Page 30 of 43



A Member may not withdraw as a party to this Agreement until it has withdrawn from all of the
Coverage Programs of FRMS as provided herein and in the Bylaws.

SECTION 21:
EXPULSION

FRMS shall have the right to expel any Member’s participation in a Coverage Program, or expel
a Member from FRMS, for violation of the terms of this Agreement, the Bylaws, or any other rule,
regulation or operational policy adopted by the Board of Directors of FRMS, in the manner
provided for in the Bylaws.

The participation of any Member of FRMS, including participation in any of FRMS’ Coverage
Programs, may be expelled in the discretion of the Board of Directors whenever such Member is
dissolved, consolidated, merged or annexed. Any such expulsion shall not relieve the Member or
Former Member of its membership responsibilities specified in this Agreement.

SECTION 22:
EFFECT OF WITHDRAWAL OR EXPULSION

The withdrawal from or expulsion of any Member from this Agreement shall not be construed as
a completion of the purpose of the Agreement, nor shall it terminate this Agreement. Any Member
that withdraws or is expelled after the effective date of this Amended and Restated Agreement
shall not be entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration,
or other property paid or donated by the Member to FRMS, or to any return of any loss reserve
contribution, or to any distribution of assets.

The withdrawal from or expulsion of any Member from any Coverage Program shall not terminate
its responsibilities to pay its unpaid Contributions, adjustments, or Assessments to such Coverage
Program. The Board of Directors shall determine the final amount due from the Member or Former
Member by way of Contributions or Assessments, if any, or any credit due on account thereof, to
the Member or Former Member for the period of its participation. Such determination shall not be
made until all Claims or other unpaid liabilities of that Coverage Program have been finally
resolved.

SECTION 23:
TERMINATION OF FRMS AND DISTRIBUTION

This Agreement may be terminated at any time with the written consent of two-thirds of the then
participating Members; provided, however, that FRMS and this Agreement shall continue to exist
for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of all assets, and all other functions
necessary to wind up the affairs of the Authority.

The Board of Directors is vested with all powers of FRMS for the purposes of winding up and

dissolving the business affairs of FRMS. These powers include the power to require Members or
Former Members who were signatories to this Agreement at the time the subject Claims were

16

Page 31 of 43



incurred, to pay any Assessments in accordance with loss allocation formulas for final disposition
of all Claims and losses covered by this Agreement or the Bylaws.

Upon termination of a Coverage Program, all net assets of such Coverage Program other shall be
distributed only among Members that are participating in such Coverage Program at the time of
termination, in accordance with and proportionate to their Contributions, adjustments, and
Assessments paid less claims or losses paid during the period of that Member’s participation in
the Coverage Program. The Board of Directors shall determine the distribution in the manner
specified in the Bylaws.

Upon termination of this Agreement, all net assets of FRMS, other than the net assets of any
Coverage Program distributed as provided above, shall be distributed only among Members in
good standing at the time of such termination in accordance with and proportionate to each such
Member’s contributions made and claims or losses paid, as permitted by Government Code
Section 6512.2. The Board of Directors shall determine such distribution in the manner specified
in the Bylaws.

In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board may, with the written consent of two-thirds of the
Voting Members, elect to assign and transfer all rights, assets, liabilities and obligations of FRMS
to a successor joint powers authority created under the Act.

SECTION 24:
AMENDMENTS

This Joint Powers Agreement may be amended by an amendment in writing signed by two-thirds
of the Members then parties to this Agreement. Upon signature of any amendment by two-thirds
of the then participating Members, any Member failing or refusing to sign such amendment may
be involuntarily terminated as a party to this Agreement as provided in the Bylaws.

SECTION 25:
ENFORCEMENT

FRMS is hereby granted authority to enforce this Agreement. In the event action is instituted to
enforce any term of this Agreement or any term of the Bylaws against any Member which has
signed this Agreement, the Member agrees to pay such sums as the court may fix as attorney fees
and costs in said action.

SECTION 26:
NON-LIABILITY OF MEMBER AGENCIES

Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities and obligations of the FRMS
shall not be the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Members which are parties to the Agreement.
Nothing in the Joint Powers Agreement or in the Bylaws adopted pursuant thereto shall be
construed as imposing liability upon any Member, or any officer, employee or member of the
legislative body thereof, for the payment of any Claims incurred in any of the Coverage Programs

17

Page 32 of 43



offered by FRMS to its Members, the sole recourse of claimants being against funds of those
insurance programs and/or self-funded programs administered by the FRMS for the payment of
such benefits.

SECTION 27:
NON-LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, ADMINISTRATOR,
AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES

The Board of Directors, officers, Administrator, agents, and employees of FRMS shall not be liable
to FRMS, to any Member or Former Member, or to any other person for any actual or alleged
breach of duty, mistake of judgment, neglect, error, misstatement, misleading statement, or any
other act or omission in the performance of their duties hereunder; for any action taken or omitted
by any director, officer, administrator, agent, or employee, or independent contractor; for loss
incurred through the investment or failure to invest funds; or loss attributable to any failure or
omission to procure or maintain insurance; except in the event of fraud, gross negligence, or
intentional misconduct of such director, officer, administrator, agent, or employee. No director,
officer, administrator, agent, or employee, including former directors, officers, administrators,
agents or employees, shall be liable for any action taken or omitted by any other director, officer,
administrator, agent, or employee.

SECTION 28:
INDEMNIFICATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES

As a public entity, FRMS shall defend and shall indemnify and hold harmless its directors, officers,
and employees, including former directors, officers and employees, from any and all claims,
demands, causes of action, liability, losses and damages arising out of the performance of their
duties as such directors, officers and employees of FRMS, except in the event of fraud, gross
negligence, corruption, malice or intentional misconduct, and the funds of FRMS shall be used for
such purposes. FRMS may purchase conventional insurance to protect FRMS, and its Members
and Former Members, against any such acts or omissions by its directors, officers and employees,
including former directors, officers and employees.

SECTION 29:
ADMINISTRATION OF PREEXISTING OBLIGATIONS

(a) All liabilities and obligations of FASIS existing prior to the effective date of this
Amended and Restated Agreement will be administered under the terms and conditions
of the FASIS Agreement as it existed prior to the effective date.

(b) All assets of FRMS existing prior to the effective date shall be reserved by FRMS for the
sole purpose of administering the preexisting obligations under the FASIS Agreement.

(c) The Board shall appoint a committee made up of representatives of Members that were

Members of FASIS prior to the effective date to make recommendations to the Board
regarding the administration of the preexisting obligations under the FASIS Agreement.

18

Page 33 of 43



(d)

(a)

(b)

(©)

D

As to specific agenda items relating to such matters, only Directors representing
Members who were members of FASIS prior to the effective date may vote, and as to
such items, a quorum shall be determined solely by reference to the number of Directors
that represent members of FASIS prior to the effective date.

In the event that FDAC EBA assigns its rights, assets, liabilities and obligations to
FRMS, any assets of FDAC EBA that are assigned to FRMS shall be used exclusively
for the purpose of administrating the obligations of FDAC EBA. In the event of such
assignment, the Board shall appoint a committee made up of representatives of Members
that were Members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date to make recommendations
to the Board regarding the administration of FDAC EBA’s obligations. As to specific
agenda items relating to such matters, only Directors representing Members who were
members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date may vote, and as to such items, a
quorum shall be determined solely by reference to the number of Directors that represent
members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date.

SECTION 30:
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the heirs, devisees, assignees and successors in
interest of the Authority and to the successors in interest of each Member in the same
manner as if such parties had been expressly named herein.

This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the state of California. This Agreement
together with the documents incorporated into the Agreement by reference constitute the
entire Agreement between the parties regarding its subject matter. There are no oral
understandings or agreements not set forth in writing herein.

If any provisions in this Agreement are held by any court to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless continue
in full force and effect.

No person or organization or entity shall be entitled to assert the rights of any Member
or Former Member under any Coverage Document or Coverage Program. No Member
or Former Member may assign any right, claim or interest it may have under this
Agreement, and no creditor, assignee or third-party beneficiary of any Member or Former
Member shall have any right, claim or title to any part, share, interest, fund, contribution
or asset of FRMS.

19

Page 34 of 43



SECTION 31:
EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and shall be as fully effective as
though executed in one document.

(Agency Name)

Date: By:

Name/Title

20

Page 35 of 43



CAZADERO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
PO BOX 508
CAZADERO CA 95421-0508

RESOLUTION 22/23-16

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN AND
APPROVING THE AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT OF
THE FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) was formed in 1984 for the purpose
of jointly funding losses and providing risk management services to reduce such losses by and
among California fire protection and community services districts; and

WHEREAS, the FDAC Employment Benefits Authority (FDAC EBA) was formed in 2005 to
establish, operate, manage, and administer health and welfare benefit programs for the benefit
of the existing and retired officers, employees and members of the legislative body of the
California public agencies who are members of FDAC EBA; and

WHEREAS, following the exploration and in-depth analysis of a strategic partnership, the Board
of Directors of FASIS and FDAC EBA directed the merger of the two programs, effective July 1,
2023, to provide comprehensive and cost-effective coverage programs through a responsive risk
pool for fire service agencies; and

WHEREAS, FASIS and FDAC EBA have agreed that FASIS will change its name to Fire Risk
Management Services (FRMS) and adopt an amended and restated joint exercise of powers
agreement, and that FDAC EBA will assign its rights and liabilities to FRMS and adopt the same
agreement as its own; and

WHEREAS, the amended and restated agreement allows FRMS to operate the programs
previously operated by both FDAC EBA and FASIS, and admit members that would have been
eligible to join either FDAC EBA or FASIS in the past; and

WHEREAS, Cazadero Community Services District is a member of FASIS, and the Board of
Directors of Cazadero Community Services District finds it in the best interest of Cazadero
Community Services District to continue participating in and obtaining coverage and risk
management services from FASIS, which is changing its name to FRMS; and

WHEREAS, FRMS (formerly FASIS) requires the Cazadero Community Services District to pass a
resolution expressing the desire and commitment of Cazadero Community Services District to
approve the amended and restated joint exercise of powers agreement of FRMS and continue
participation in FRMS, which requires a new ;Qgrsseé\gfe‘lasr minimum participation period.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Cazadero Community Services
District approves the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for FRMS, as
presented; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorizes the President of the Board to
sign the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement that shall enable the
Cazadero Community Services District to continue participating in the joint self-insurance and
risk management programs provided by FRMS.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was introduced by Director who
moved its adoption, seconded by Director , and adopted on a
roll call vote of the members of said Board as follows:

Director P. Barry
Director M. Berry
Director H. Canelis
Director D. DeBeaune
Director S. Griswold

|11

AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT

WHEREUPON, the President of the Board declared the foregoing Resolution adopted, and

SO ORDERED.
Paul Barry, Board President Maureen Berry, Secretary of the Board
Homer Canelis, Director Daina DeBeaune, Director
Scott Griswold, Director Date

Page 37 of 43



DISCUSSION ITEMS



COMMITTEE REPORTS



FINANCIALS



3:42 PM

03/05/23
Accrual Basis

Cazadero Community Services District
Bills Presented for Payment

February 15 through March 8, 2023

Date Num Name Amount
Feb 15 - Mar 8, 23
02/16/2023 ACH Comcast -210.26
02/25/2023 ACH McPhail Fuel Co. -597.23
02/25/2023 ACH McPhail Fuel Co. -1,167.82
02/20/2023 ACH Recology Sonoma Marin -49.72
02/28/2023 ACH Comcast -174.96
03/03/2023 ACH P.G.&E. -127.93
03/03/2023 ACH P.G. &E. -315.99
02/19/2023 10265 Ross Recreation Equipment, Inc. -119,214.53
03/01/2023 10266 Barrio, Gabriel -184.70
03/01/2023 10267 Caplan, Nancy K. -415.57
03/01/2023 10268 Dewart, Alan -1,200.55
03/01/2023 10269 Endsley, Stephanie R -369.40
03/01/2023 10270 Krausmann, Steven M -606.80
03/01/2023 10271 Kulczewski, Sharon -835.87
03/01/2023 10272 Schanz, Eric E. -461.75
03/01/2023 10273 Shane, Stephen -184.70
03/08/2023 10274 Bank of America Business Mastercard -5,042.89
03/08/2023 10275 Blomberg & Griffin Accountancy Corp. -5,425.00
03/08/2023 10276 Brennan, John -75.23
03/08/2023 10277 Burton's Fire Inc. -1,100.00
03/08/2023 10278 Caplan, Nancy -87.46
03/08/2023 10279 Cazadero Supply -145.88
03/08/2023 10280 Complete Welders Supply -79.06
03/08/2023 10281 L. N. Curtis & Sons -563.57
03/08/2023 10282 Law Offices of William D. Ross -500.00
03/08/2023 10283 Sonoma County Junior College District -554.16
Feb 15 - Mar 8, 23 -139,691.03

Page 41 of 43

Page 1



CORRESPONDENCE



3/4123, 3:14 PM Xfinity Connect Please Review_ Your Streamline Subscription Will Increase July 2023 Printout

Please Review: Your Streamline Subscription Will Increase July
2023

To cazaderocsd@comcast.net

Greetings Sherry Kulczewski,

We haope this email finds you well. We're reaching out to let you know that starting July 1, 2023, you will see an
increase in the cost of your Streamline subscription; your monthly cost will increase from $100 to $120.

In our 7-year history, Streamline has never had a price increase, so we understand this may come as a bit of a
surprise to you. Like any business, we feel the rising costs for labor and overhead and made the tough decision to
raise rates to ensure we can confinue to provide the support and product experience you’ve come to expect from
us.

We have invested heavily in improving our platform's compliance, performance, security, and features to meet your
evolving needs, and this price adjustment will help us sustain these efforts.

We understand that this increase may impact your budget, and we want to make sure that you have all the
information you need to make an informed decision. We are also committed to pricing predictability, following COLA
or other standards for pricing adjustments in the future.

If you have any questions or concerns about the price increase, please don't hesitate to reach out to us. We'll be
happy to discuss your specific situation and explore any alternatives that may be available to you.

We appreciate your business and your trust in Streamline. We look forward to working with you, helping you stay
compliant, and illuminating the essential work you do for your community.

Sincerely,

Chris

Chris Ryan
Head of Customer Happiness at Streamline

Need 1:1 Support? Submit a ticket from the Support tab of your site
Email us anytime: support@getstreamline.com
Or, call us at: (916)-238-1811

Streamiline,

2321 P Street,
Sacramento,
California

Update your email preferences to choose the types of emails you receive.

Page 43 of 43

hitps:/fconnect.xfinity.com/appsuite/v=7.10.5-18.20221201 .064856/print.html?print_1677971640038 2/2





